Public Document Pack

NOTICE

4 .

S !

> Ve

S 2 &

S0 s

§ e ‘

OF - R

z | Royal Borough
2 | of Windsor &
2 | Maidenhead

MEETING

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT PANEL

will meet on

WEDNESDAY, 7TH NOVEMBER, 2018
At 7.00 pm
in the
COUNCIL CHAMBER - GUILDHALL WINDSOR,

TO: MEMBERS OF THE WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

COUNCILLORS MALCOLM ALEXANDER (CHAIRMAN), PHILLIP BICKNELL (VICE-
CHAIRMAN), MICHAEL AIREY, JOHN BOWDEN, WISDOM DA COSTA, EILEEN QUICK,
SAMANTHA RAYNER, SHAMSUL SHELIM AND EDWARD WILSON

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

COUNCILLORS NATASHA AIREY, CHRISTINE BATESON, MALCOLM BEER,
HASHIM BHATTI, GARY MUIR, NICOLA PRYER, JACK RANKIN, WESLEY RICHARDS
AND JOHN STORY

Karen Shepherd — Service Lead, Democratic Services - Issued: 30 October 2018

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part | of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Wendy Binmore 01628 796251

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly
by the nearest exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Do not re-enter the building
until told to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings —In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the public part of the meeting will be
audio recorded, and may also be filmed and broadcast through the online application Periscope. If filmed, the footage
will be available through the council’s main Twitter feed @RBWM or via the Periscope website. The audio recording
will also be made available on the RBWM website, after the meeting.

Filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings may be undertaken by any person attending the
meeting. By entering the meeting room you are acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this
recording will be in the public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the
Democratic Services or Legal representative at the meeting.



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/

ITEM

AGENDA

PART |
SUBJECT

PAGE

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest.

MINUTES

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

To consider the Head of Planning’s report on planning applications
received.

Full details on all planning applications (including application forms, site
plans, objections received, correspondence etc.) can be found by
accessing the Planning Applications Public Access Module at
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

To consider the Essential Monitoring reports.

61-64







This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to Information)
Act

1985, each item on this report includes a list of Background Papers that have been
relied

on to a material extent in the formulation of the report and recommendation.

The list of Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning decisions,
replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation received from local
societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the total number of letters
received from members of the public will normally be listed as a single Background
Paper,

although a distinction will be made where contrary views are expressed. Any replies to
consultations that are not received by the time the report goes to print will be recorded
as

“Comments Awaited”.

The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country Planning
Acts

and associated legislation, Department of the Environment Circulars, the Berkshire
Structure Plan, Statutory Local Plans or other forms of Supplementary Planning
Guidance,

as the instructions, advice and policies contained within these documents are common
to

the determination of all planning applications. Any reference to any of these documents
will be made as necessary under the heading “Remarks”.

STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998

The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000,
and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public authority to
act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular, Article 8
(respect

for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of property)
apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made however, there is
further provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. In the
vast majority of cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a balancing
exercise between private rights and public interest, and therefore much of this authority’s
decision making will continue to take into account this balance.

The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual
applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances
which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues.



MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS
Disclosure at Meetings

If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.

A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting. In order to avoid any accusations of taking
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area
or, if they wish, leave the room. If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include:

e Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.

e Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in
carrying out member duties or election expenses.

e Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been
fully discharged.

o Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority.

e Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

e Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest.

e Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.

A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: 1 declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, | will leave the room/ move to the public area for the
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx.
As soon as we come to that item, | will make representations, then | will leave the room/ move to the
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Prejudicial Interests

Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.

A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘1 declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, | will leave the room/ move to the public area for the
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Or, if making representations in the item: 1 declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as
we come to that item, | will make representations, then | will leave the room/ move to the public area for
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Personal interests

Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a
Member when making a decision on council matters.

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, | will take part in the discussion and vote on the
matter. 6



Agenda Iltem 3

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

WEDNESDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2018

PRESENT: Councillors Phillip Bicknell (Vice-Chairman), Malcolm Beer, Eileen Quick,
Samantha Rayner, Shamsul Shelim and Edward Wilson.

Officers: Ashley Smith, Wendy Binmore and Sian Saadeh

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M. Airey, Alexander, Bowden
and Da Costa.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Clir Beer — Declared a personal interest in item 1 as he personally knew the applicant.
He confirmed he attended Panel with an open mind.

Clir Quick — Declared a personal interest in item 2 as she had spoken to local
residents about the application. She confirmed she attended Panel with an open mind.

Clir S. Rayner — Declared a personal interest in item 1 as she personally knew the
objector. She confirmed she attended Panel with an open mind.

Clir E. Wilson — Declared a personal interest in item 1 as the application was in his
Ward and he had been in correspondence with the applicant. He confirmed he
attended Panel with an open mind.

MINUTES

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting held on 12
September 2018 be approved.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

17/03345 Mrs Pawlik-Cazin: Alterations to the roof to facilitate loft conversion
with x3 side (north-west) facing dormers and x1 side (south east)
facing dormer and x1 rear Juliette balcony and alterations to
fenestration (retrospective) — THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY
to grant planning permission with the conditions listed in Section
10 of the Main Report, as per the Head of Planning’s
recommendations.

(The Panel was addressed by Melanie Bovingdon in objection and
John Andrews the agent on behalf of the applicant).

18/02283 Construction of x4 dwellings with associated car parking, landscaping
and associated infrastructure following demolition of all existing
buildings at Garage Block to Rear of 121 and 123 andLand Rear of
113 to 117 Springfield Road, Windsor. — THE PANEL VOTED
UNANIMOUSLY to refuse the application and refuse planning

-



permission for the following summarised reasons (the full

reasons are identified in Section 11 of the Main Report):

1. The proposed development would result in a cramped,
overdevelopment of the site and would appear out of context
with the surrounding residential development to the detriment
of the character and visual amenity of the locality.

2. The proposed development would result in an unacceptable
impact on the living conditions of the neighbouring
bungalows, numbers 1 & 2 Combermere Close.

3. The proposed development would result in insufficient car
parking and the width of the access is considered to be
inadequate to the detriment of highway safety.

4. It has not been properly demonstrated that the loss of
employment use would not harm the employment
opportunities in the locality.

(The Panel was addressed by Zygmunt Biernat and Philip James in
objection and David Maddox the agent on behalf of the applicant).

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

All details of the Essential Monitoring reports were noted.

The meeting, which began at 7.00 pm, finished at 7.50 pm

CHAIRMAN. ...,



Agenda Item 4

ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

Windsor Urban Panel

7th November 2018

INDEX
APP = Approval
CLU = Certificate of Lawful Use
DD = Defer and Delegate
DLA = Defer Legal Agreement
PERM = Permit
PNR = Prior Approval Not Required
REF = Refusal
WA = Would Have Approved
WR = Would Have Refused
Item No. 1 Application No. 18/02344/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 11
Location: The Moorings Willows Riverside Park Windsor SL4 5TG
Proposal: Upgrade and renewal of existing services to the moorings including replacement of existing electric hook-up
and water points, replacement of existing mooring bollards with mooring rings, upgrading of black and grey
water drainage system with installation of bespoke drainage system and replacement of existing storage
sheds.
Applicant: Member Call-in: Expiry Date: 3 October 2018
Item No. 2 Application No. 18/02346/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 33
Location: 75 - 75A Victoria Street Windsor
Proposal: Change of use of part ground floor and basement from Al(retail) to Bla (offices) and part residential
(1no.studio flat). Demolition of existing garages, alterations and extensions including a second floor extension
and rear extensions to create 2no. 1 bed flats, 1no.1 bed dwelling and cycle/bin store.
Applicant:  Mr Gorslar Member Call-in: Expiry Date: 9 November 2018

AGLIST



This page is intentionally left blank



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

7 November 2018 ltem: 1

Application 18/02344/FULL

No.:

Location: The Moorings Willows Riverside Park Windsor SL4 5TG

Proposal: Upgrade and renewal of existing services to the moorings including replacement of
existing electric hook-up and water points, replacement of existing mooring bollards
with mooring rings, upgrading of black and grey water drainage system with installation
of bespoke drainage system and replacement of existing storage sheds.

Applicant:

Agent: Mr Jeremy Lambe

Parish/Ward:  Bray Parish/Clewer North Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Briony Franklin on 01628 796007 or at
briony.franklin@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

11

1.2

1.3

SUMMARY

This current application follows application number 17/00045/FULL which was refused and
dismissed on appeal. It seeks to address the previous Inspector’s decision by deleting the 15
marine service bollards and the 45 mooring bollards from the proposal. These elements were
considered to constitute inappropriate development in the Green Belt and no very special
circumstances were considered to exist to outweigh the harm to the Green Belt. It is now
proposed to install 66 mooring rings to replace existing mooring bollards and rings along the
riverside. The existing electric hook-ups and water points are to be replaced by electric service
boxes and water taps. The other aspects of the proposal remain unchanged and include the
replacement of 7 metal storage sheds with timber bin stores and engineering works which include
digging a trench to provide a bespoke drainage system and other services and the installation of
underground pumping stations.

It is considered that the proposed development would now constitute appropriate development in
the Green Belt and would preserve the openness of the Green Belt and would be acceptable in
terms of its impact on the character and visual amenities of the site itself and the River Thames
Setting.

It is acknowledged that there has been a large number of objections to this proposal. Many of the
objectors consider that the existing services are more than adequate and there is concern that
the upgrading of the moorings/drainage system would be a precursor for permanent house boats
to be moored up along this stretch of riverbank. However it is not for the Local Planning Authority
to anticipate what the applicant may or may not do in the future and the mooring of boats along
this stretch of riverbank is controlled under the original planning permission, ref number
91/01625/FULL, which permits the continued use of the riverbank for thirty three residential and
leisure boat moorings. The planning permission only allows the mooring of traditional boats or
houseboats being ‘capable of navigation by an independent integral means of propulsion.’

Subject to the final comments from the Environment Agency and the Local Lead Flood
Authority it is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions
listed in Section 13 of this report.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o At the request of Councillor Bhatti and Councillor Pryer for the reason that it is in the public
interest.

11



3.1

4.1

51

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site comprises a strip of land adjacent to the River Thames at the northern end of
the Willows Riverside Park, a residential caravan park. The site includes a grassed, amenity
space used by the residents of the Park. There are large boats currently moored up along the
riverbank. The Moorings currently consist of 25 green metal sheds, 25 electric hook-up points, 55
moorings rings, 8 mooring bollards, 25 angled galvanised posts at the edge of the river, water
points, rubbish/recycling wheelie bins and 4 brick structures housing electrical gear. A footpath
runs through the site, although this is not a public right of way. There are also a number of trees
on the site which are subject to a Tree Preservation Order.

KEY CONSTRAINTS

The application site is situated within the designated Green Belt and lies within Flood Zones 2
and 3.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The application seeks planning permission to upgrade and renew existing services to the
moorings including the replacement of existing electric hook-up and water points, replacement of
existing mooring bollards and rings with 66 new mooring rings, upgrade the black and grey water
drainage system with a bespoke drainage system and replace 7 of the metal storage sheds with
timber sheds to accommodate wheelie bins.

The existing mooring bollards and various mooring fixings which are located along the riverbank
are proposed to be replaced with standard galvanised mooring rings (120mm in diameter) and
would be located on the camp-shedding along the riverbank. The mooring rings would lie flat
when not in use.

The existing electric hook-up services are located along the river bank approximately 3-4m away
from the edge of the river adjacent to the existing metal storage sheds. The existing hook-ups
consist of square plastic / polypropylene boxes located on steel posts up to 1.3m above ground
level. It is proposed to replace the 25 existing hook-up service boxes with 15 standard ‘Gewiss’
service boxes (H=396mm W=316mm D=160mm). Six of the service boxes would be mounted
within six of the timber bin stores and would project 30mm beyond the external surface of the bin
store. The other nine service boxes would be direct replacements of the existing service hook-up
boxes and would be located on galvanised posts at a height of 720mm above ground level and
have an overall height of 1.1m. They will be located adjacent to the existing metal storage bins.

The water points are currently located on the Park Homes side of the footpath. The water points
are proposed to be located beside the replacement service boxes which will remove the need for
pipes to be trailed across the footpath.

As before a service trench (approximate depth 700mm) is proposed to be installed along the
edge of the riverbank adjacent to the existing camp-shedding and will run almost the entire length
of the moorings. The new trench will house mains water, TV and Internet supply, electrical supply
and foul water drainage. Three pumping stations and chambers are also proposed to be located
below ground. It is proposed to replace 7 of the existing metal storage sheds with 7 timber bin
enclosures which would measure 1.5m by 0.81m and be 1.3m in height.

During the course of the application further clarification/information has been sought and
obtained and revised layout drawings have been submitted to clarify the position of the Service
Boxes denoted as SB and shown as small green circles on the drawings. In addition the bin store
drawings have been updated to show the services boxes mounted within the bin store and
includes the 30mm projection of the service box. A drawing has also been provided to show the
service boxes mounted on steel posts and the water taps.

12



5.7

6.1

The following planning history is considered to be relevant to this application:

Reference Description Decision and
Date

91/01625/FULL | Continued use of riverbank for thirty three residential | granted

and leisure boat moorings. Permission
11.02.1992

This permission is subject to two conditions which
state: “This consent shall apply only to the mooring
of traditional boats or houseboats being capable of
navigation by an independent integral means of
propulsion” and “no more than thirty three boats shall
be moored at the site at any one time”. The reason
for these conditions is to protect the visual amenities
of this riverside site which is located within the
Metropolitan Green Belt.

97/02403/UCU Enforcement Enquiry: Unauthorised mooring of Closed
houseboat ‘Bodnic’

99/78496/FULL | To install 25 non-combustible storage lockers 1 for Permitted
each mooring resident.

00/79157/FULL | Installation of 25 non-combustible storage lockers Permitted
(re-siting of lockers permitted under 99/78496).

15/01833/FULL | Replacement of 33 residential and leisure boat Withdrawn on
moorings with 13 houseboat moorings for the siting 10t
of 13 houseboats together with associated December
services/storage/bin stores/parking landscape and 2015
environmental improvements.

17/00045/FULL | Upgrade and renewal of existing services to the Refused and
moorings, replacement of existing electric hook-up dismissed on
and water points, mooring bollards, upgrading of appeal.
black and grey water drainage system with bespoke
drainage system and replacement of sheds.

17/50006/ENF | Enforcement Enquiry: Alleged mooring of residential | pending
vessel. Consideration

Planning application number 17/00045/FULL was refused for the following reason:

‘The scheme would result in inappropriate development within the Green Belt. A case of Very
Special Circumstances does not exist which outweighs the harm caused to the Green Belt. This
conflicts with paragraphs 87 and 88 of the National Planning Policy Framework and policies GB1
and GB2 (part A) of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999
(incorporating Alterations Adopted June 2003).’

DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Adopted Royal Borough Local Plan (2003)

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Issue Adopted Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance DG1, N2
of area
Impact on the Green Belt GB1 & GB2
Trees N6
Flood Risk F1

13



7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2018)

Section 12- Achieving well-designed places

Section 13- Protecting Green Belt land

Section 14- Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Section 15- Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Appropriate Development in Green Belt and acceptable
. SP1, SP5
impact on Green Belt
Design in keeping with character and appearance of area SP2, SP3
Acceptable impact on River Thames corridor SP4
Manages flood risk and waterways NR1
Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows NR2

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents have now been
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination. The Submission Version of the Borough
Local Plan does not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough. However, by
publishing and submitting the Borough Local Plan for independent examination the Council has
formally confirmed its intention to adopt the submission version. As the Council considers the
emerging Borough Local Plan to be sound and legally compliant, officers and Councillors should
accord relevant policies and allocations significant weight in the determination of applications
taking account of the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies.
Therefore, the weight afforded to each policy at this stage will differ depending on the level and
type of representation to that policy. This is addressed in more detail in the assessment below.

This document can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough local plan/1351/submission/1

Supplementary Planning Documents

¢ RBWM Interpretation of Policy F1

More information on this document can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni

ng

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT
Comments from interested parties

282 neighbours were notified directly of the application and 293 were re-notified on the additional
information received during the course of the application.

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on the 15" August

2018. 14


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough_local_plan/1351/submission/1
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning

8.3

31 letters have been received objecting to the application including a letter from the Oakley
Green and Fifield Residents Association. In addition a petition with 95 signatures from Members
of the Willows Residents Association and other Willows residents has been received and an e-
petition which has been accepted by the Mayor entitled ‘Stop the proposed development of the
Moorings at Willows Riverside Park, Windsor' has also been received by the Council and
includes115 names.

The objections are summarised as follows:

Comments Where in report
this is considered

Electric boxes are much larger than ones on moorings — impact on Green Belt | Paragraph 9.6

Development will not tidy up the appearance of the moorings and reduce the 9.16 & 9.7
impact on the Green Belt.

No very special circumstances for this development in the Green Belt 9.310 9.6
Bin enclosures are higher than existing sheds and will not match existing 9.5
sheds

Essential services to the moorings already in place. Facilities provided are 9.20

sufficient for traditional boats. Development is unnecessary.

Fishing area reserved for park residents should be protected from being used | 9.21
as a mooring.

Reduction in number of sheds and electric boxes indicates a reduction in the 9.22
number of boat moorings which goes against the objectives of the
Environment Agency to increase residential moorings.

Application site includes the amenity area reserved for park residents. The 9.23
moorings only relates to a thin strip of land between the river and the footpath.

Concern regarding leakages of foul water from drainage system and flexible 9.24 & 9.25
pipes.

Not enough evidence provided to justify the excavation of a trench on unstable | 9.26
soil on the riverbank within the 8m watercourse buffer.

Building of trenches will prevent new trees being planted. 9.14
There have been numerous attempts by park owners to put flat-floats or 1.3
pontoon type boats on the river and these have been rejected by RBWM.

There are 5 traditional boats and 2 floating homes (non-traditional) currently 9.27

moored at site. One of the floating homes is for sale and is also advertised on
the Airbnb website as holiday accommodation. The toilet disposal facility,
electricity and water connections enabling these houses to moor are laid over
the footpath and create a trip hazard.

A bespoke drainage system is not required. 9.20
Object to excavation of trenches on the riverbank as it would put nearby 9.28
houses at risk

Documentation is incorrect, inaccurate, missing or out-of-date. 9.29
Angled galvanised posts should not be removed as they are safety fixtures 9.30

used during a flood to prevent the boats from coming onto land and capsizing
when the water recedes.

The proposed development constitutes inappropriate development and no 9.3-9.8
VSC exist in this case.

Application is not sufficiently different from application refused at appeal 9.8
Construction of trenches will harm trees 9.15
Proposal will not preserve or enhance the River Thames Corridor. 9.16
Upgrading of river front is a precursor for installing more ‘floating homes’. 1.3
Spoil the character of the riverbank for residents and users of the river. 9.16
Development would decrease the resident’s Amenity & Recreation Open 9.23
Green Space.

Noise from pumping station will cause disturbance to residents. 9.18
One of the pumping stations is to be sited within an area allocated for fishing. 9.21
Planning already breached by illegally moored boats 9.27

15



Infringement of Park license

9.31

Application is defective — does not include anything about the purpose or use
of the development applied for. This is a highly relevant ‘material
consideration.’

1.3,5.1&9.20

Not even expensive marinas offer a bespoke drainage system — there are
pumping stations located in marinas and along the river and pumping boats
that would service boats in their own moorings.

9.20

Application proposes infrastructure that is neither required nor expected by
boaters.

9.20

The Moorings at the Willows Riverside Park is classified as online moorings
which tend to be cheaper than off-line moorings found within marinas. The
adjacent moorings do not offer a bespoke drainage system or BT cables.

9.20

The Factual Report on Ground Investigation was not available when the
previous application was considered. The installation of trenches will increase
the risk to nearby structures, the impact to the roots of the trees and the ability
to increase the number of trees and improve biodiversity.

9.28,9.14 & 9.15

The building of trenches and inspection chambers, pumps and foul system 9.9-9.13
would reduce the capacity of the ground to absorb water and would increase

the risk of flooding.

EA permit should be invalidated. 9.26

The tree information is out of date. 9.15

The timber bin enclosures pose a fire risk and would not be an attractive 9.5&9.16

feature along the river frontage.

Statutory consultees

Where in
the report

Consultee Comment

this is
considered
9.17

Council’s
Ecologist
Lead Local Flood
Authority

No objection subject to conditions

No increase in flood risk associated with surface water run-off as | 9.12

a result of the development — No objection.

The LLFA has been re-consulted on the updated FRA and their
comments are awaited.
No objection. Informatives suggested.

Highway 9.33
Authority
Environment

Agency

The FRA submitted with the application has considered the | 9.11 & 9.13
impact of the development on flood risk on and off site in relation
to current predicted flood levels and increased levels as a result
of climate change. The EA is satisfied that the development is in
accordance with the NPPF and would not impact negatively on

navigation of the River Thames.

The proposed development will only meet the requirements of
the NPPF if the measures as detailed in the FRA are
implemented and secured by way of a planning condition.

An Environmental Permit is in place, but a permit variation will
be required for the proposed changes.

The EA has been re-consulted on the updated FRA and their
comments are awaited.

Tree Officer Based on the information submitted it should be possible to | 9.15

install the services on this site. However the specification for any

16




9.1

trenching has not yet been completed. Final details of the tree
protection during the installation of the utilities would therefore
be required once site investigations have been completed.

Suggested conditions — Tree Protection during utility installation,
Tree Protection, Tree Retention/Replacement.

Environmental Condition suggested relating to plant noise 9.18
Protection
Consultees
Where in the
Comment report this is
Consultee .
considered
Bray Parish Recommended for refusal — GB1 The proposed |9.2-9.8 & 9.32
Council development is inappropriate development in the Green Belt.

There are no very special circumstances which exist that
outweighs the harm to the Green Belt. GB2 The proposed
development by reason of size, scale, mass, bulk, siting
would physically reduce the openness of the Green Belt and
is therefore harmful to the openness.

Bray Parish Council requests the application to be heard at
Maidenhead Development Control Panel if the Planning
Officer is minded to approve.

South Bucks | No comments received.

District

Council

The River The River Thames Society wishes to object to this | 1.3 &9.20
Thames application on the same grounds as for the previous

Society application for this site. There have been attempts made in

the past to place houseboats on the site and it would appear
that this application, again to provide permanent mains
services is being made with a future application for
permanent house boats in mind. We can see no justification
for the provision of the described services if the moorings are
used for boats which will at different times be mobile. We
request that this application should be turned down at this
stage.

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:

[ Green Belt

ii Flood Risk

iii Impact on trees

iv Impact on the character and visual amenity of the area
v Ecology

Vi Other considerations.

i Green Belt

17



9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

The site is located within the designated Green Belt and the Government attaches great
importance to Green Belts. The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl
by keeping land permanently open; the essential characteristics of Green Belts are their
openness and their permanence. It is therefore necessary to determine whether the proposal
constitutes appropriate development within the Green Belt having regard to the NPPF (revised
2018) and the relevant development plan policies. In addition it is necessary to consider the effect
of the development on the openness of the Green Belt. This current application seeks to address
the previous Inspector’s decision and has deleted the proposed 15 marine service bollards and
45 proposed mooring bollards from the application. These structures were considered to amount
to the construction of new building in the Green Belt and were deemed to constitute inappropriate
development in the Green Belt. No very special circumstances were considered to exist to justify
the development in the Green Belt.

Appropriate forms of development in the Green Belt

This current application now proposes the installation of 66 mooring rings (120mm in diameter)
which would be spaced at 5m internals along the riverbank and would lie flat when not in use.
They would replace the existing mooring rings and bollards which are randomly placed along the
river bank. It is considered that the proposed mooring rings would not be materially larger than
the mooring fixings they would replace and therefore this part of the development would meet
the exception provided under point d) paragraph 145 of the revised NPPF, ‘the replacement of a
building, provided the new building is in the same use and not materially larger than the one it
replaces”, and would constitute appropriate development in the Green Belt.

The installation of a trench (approx.700mm deep) to house the upgraded services to the
moorings and the installation of 3 underground pumping stations would constitute an engineering
operation. Paragraph 146 of the revised NPPF has replaced paragraph 90 set out in the previous
NPPF and still states that ‘certain other forms of development are also not inappropriate in the
Green Belt provided they preserve its openness and do not conflict with the purposes of
including land within it. These include b) engineering operations. In determining the previous
appeal the Inspector confirmed that the works ‘principally involve the construction of a drainage
system, which would fall under the scope of engineering works.’ Since these works would be
constructed below ground level, and any above ground manifestations of the drainage system
would be housed within existing buildings located on the river bank, without materially increasing
their volume, the previous Inspector concluded that the engineering works proposed would
preserve the openness of the Green Belt. The Inspector also wrote (paragraph 13) ‘Considering
the proposed engineering works against the purposes of including land in the Green Belt, as set
out in paragraph 80 of the Framework, the evidence before me demonstrates that the drainage
system would be connected to the ongoing servicing of a longstanding mooring facility for leisure
and residential boards. As such, there would be no conflict with the Green Belt purposes of
checking the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas, preventing neighbouring towns from
merging in to one another, or assisting in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment. For
the same reasons, these engineering works would have no effect on the setting and special
character of historic towns, and would not conflict with the Green Belt purpose of assisting in
urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict land. The proposed engineering
works would therefore meet the exception provided under bullet point 2 of paragraph 90 of the
Framework and would not amount to inappropriate development.’ For the same reasons as cited
by the previous Inspector it is therefore considered that the proposed engineering works would
constitute appropriate development in the Green Belt.

There are currently 25 metal storage sheds located along the riverbank and 7 of these would be
removed and replaced with 7 new timber wheelie bin stores. In determining the previous appeal
the Inspector noted that the existing metal storage sheds measured approximately 1.85m in
length, 1.13m in height and 0.87m in width equating to a volume of approximately 1.66 cubic
metres. The replacement bin stores would measure around 1.53m in length, 0.81m in width and
1.3m in height with a resulting volume of around 1.61 cubic metres. The timber bin stores would
house wheelie bins and be sited in the same location as the units they would replace. The
inspector wrote (paragraph 10) ‘....whilst the new bin stores would be slightly higher than the
storage sheds that they would replace, the overall volume of the structures would be broadly
similar.” As previously concluded by the Inspector the replacement bin stores would not therefore

18



9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

amount to a materially larger building, and would meet the terms of the exception set out in d) of
paragraph 145 of the Framework.

The 25 existing electric hook-up service boxes which consist of square plastic / polypropylene
boxes located on steel posts up to 1.2m above ground level are proposed to be replaced with 15
standard ‘Gewiss’ service boxes (H=396mm W=316mm D=160mm). Six of the service boxes
would be mounted within six of the timber bin stores and the boxes would project 30mm beyond
the external surface of the bin store. The other nine service boxes would be direct replacements
of the existing service hook-up boxes and would be located on galvanised posts immediately
adjacent to the existing metal storage bins. They would be mounted 710mm above ground level
and have an overall height of 1.1m. The replacement service boxes will not be materially larger
than the 25 existing hook-up boxes they replace and therefore this part of the development would
be appropriate under point d) of paragraph 145 of the revised NPPF.

Impact on openness of the Green Belt

The proposed engineering works including the proposed pumping stations would all be below
ground level and the electrical switch gear for the pump chambers would be located within the
existing brick built electrical gear housing structures already located on the riverbank. The
openness of the Green Belt would therefore be preserved. The total volume of the new bin
stores would be no greater than the structures they would replace. Whilst there is a slight
increase in height this would be compensated by the reduction in length and width and
consequently the development would not have any harmful effect on the openness of the Green
Belt. In addition the installation of mooring rings in place of existing mooring rings and bollards
would have no greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt. Likewise the replacement of
twenty five electric hook-up boxes with fifteen ‘Gewiss’ service boxes (six of which would be
mounted within the six timber bin stores) would also have no greater impact on the openness of
the Green Belt.

It is considered that the proposed development would constitute appropriate development in the
Green Belt and would preserve the openness of the Green Belt. It would accord with saved local
plan policies GB1 and GB2, emerging policies SP1 and SP5 and the guidance set out in the
NPPF (revised July 2018). The previous Inspectors objections have been satisfactorily addressed
by the deletion of the service and marine bollards from the scheme.

ii Flood Risk

The application site lies within Flood Zone 2 (medium risk) and 3a (high risk) and an updated
Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted to reflect the current proposed development. As
before it is accepted that the Sequential Test is passed since the proposal involves upgrading
and replacing current services on site and there are no other locations where the proposals could
be considered. The development needs to be at this location out of necessity, as this is where
boats are permitted to moor. It is therefore agreed that the development, which would serve the
residential and leisure moorings, has to take place in this location, and as such the Sequential
Test is passed.

As the development would fall into ‘Water Compatible’ development, according to the Flood Risk
Vulnerability Classification table in the NPPG there is no requirement for the Exceptions Test to
be applied.

The FRA submitted with the application has considered the impact of the development on flood
risk on and off site in relation to current predicted flood levels and increased levels as a result of
climate change. It is considered that the development is in accordance with the NPPF and would
not increase flood risk or impact negatively on navigation of the River Thames. The proposed
development will however only meet the requirements of the NNPF if the measures as detailed in
the FRA are implemented and secured by way of a planning condition. This includes that the bin
stores shall be robustly fixed to the ground to prevent them washing away during a flood event.
An appropriate condition detailing these measures will therefore need to be imposed on any
planning permission granted.

19



9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

9.17

The proposed development will result in no increase in impermeable area and there will therefore
be no increase in flood risk associated with surface water runoff as a result of this development.

The final comments of the EA and LLFA based on the updated FRA are awaited, although it is not
anticipated that their comments will fundamentally change and they have raised no objection to
the scheme. Subject to their final comments it is considered that the proposed development
accords with adopted policy F1 and emerging policy NR1 and the guidance set out in the NPPF.

iii Impact on trees

The trees on the site are protected by a Tree Preservation Order and the trees make an
important contribution to the character of the area. All the trees are shown to be retained.

As before the application has been accompanied by an Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AlA),
a Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan. A Soil Investigation Report has also been
submitted. The tree officer requested some updated/ additional tree information and a revised
AlA (reference 16-2921 3762 03 Version 7) has been submitted and a letter dated 21%
September from Lockhart Garratt seeks to address the tree issues raised by the tree officer and
includes a cross section of the 700mm deep trench in relation to a person working in the trench.
The trench is to be excavated using an airspade and hand digging where necessary. There is still
concern that the battering of the sides of the trenches as shown in the diagram would impact
surface roots, would cause additional root damage and may not be practical using hand held
tools. Based on the information that has been submitted it should however be possible to install
the services on the site. The specification for the trenches has not yet been completed and
details of the methodology for the installation of the underground services will need to be
submitted for approval. Subject to the imposition of suitable conditions no objection is raised to
the proposal on tree grounds and the proposal accords with adopted policy N6 and emerging
policy NR2.

iv Impact on the character and visual amenity of the area

The various mooring methods to secure the houseboats and leisure boats currently produces
quite a cluttered appearance along the riverbank. It is therefore considered that the proposed
mooring rings and the removal of other fixings such as the existing bollards and the angled
galvanised steel posts along the river edge would help to tidy up the appearance of the river
frontage and result in visual benefit. All the services will be provided below ground level and this
would also reduce the amount of piping/ cabling which currently runs over ground. There will also
be a reduction in the number of electric hook up boxes. The bin enclosures are to be constructed
from timber weatherboarding and have a natural finish and would house wheelie bins which
currently lie adjacent to some of the metal storage bins. Overall it is considered that the proposal
will help to improve the visual appearance of the site itself and would conserve and enhance the
character and setting of the River Thames in accordance with saved policy N2 and emerging
policy SP4.

v Ecology

The application has been accompanied by ecology survey reports dated March 2015 and July
2017 which conclude that the majority of the site is of low ecological value. To ensure that the
works do not adversely affect any notable species or habitats a Construction Environmental
Management Plan is required to be implemented and this can be secured by condition in the
event of planning permission being granted. The CEMP should detail how pollution will be
prevented and controlled and measures to avoid harming nesting birds, mammals and other
wildlife. In addition in line with the recommendations made in the reports and paragraph 175 of
the NPPF the development should incorporate opportunities for wildlife and a further condition to
secure enhancement is required to be imposed. The ecological value of the River Thames
Corridor will be maintained in accordance with emerging policy SP4 and no objection is raised to
the application on ecological grounds subject to the imposition of suitable conditions.

vi Other considerations

20



9.18

9.19

9.20

9.21

9.22

9.23

9.24

9.25

9.26

9.27

9.28

A condition relating to plant noise to protect the amenities of the neighbours and prevent
nuisance arising is recommended by the Environmental Protection Team.

It is not considered that the proposal will cause any harm to the living conditions of the
neighbouring park homes.

The proposal is to upgrade an outdate system. It is not for the Local Planning Authority to decide
whether the proposed development is necessary or not and it is not relevant to the assessment of
the planning application. Given that this site has planning permission for residential and leisure
moorings, it is considered reasonable to expect the operator/owner to upgrade facilities to serve
boats that use these moorings. In addition the agent has confirmed that in response to
representations made by third parties relating to Health and Safety Risks, Haulfryn Group has
been contacted by the Food and Safety officer at RBWM and requested to undertake a Risk
Assessment. A Full Risk Assessment has been undertaken and the documentation has been
provided to the RBWM Food and Safety Officer. It is understood that in a letter from the RBWM
Food and Safety Officer to Haulfryn Group dated 18.09.2018 regarding services on the riverbank
and potential hazards, the letter states: "ldeally these services should be underground, and a
proper hook up point/tap should be alongside the mooring".

It has been confirmed that the proposal would not prevent/ interfere with existing fishing rights for
Park residents and the pumping stations will be below ground. However fishing rights would not
be a material planning consideration and would be a civil matter between the Park owners and
the residents.

Planning permission currently allows for 33 boats to be moored up along this stretch of river.
Providing this number is not exceed there is no restriction on the number of boats moored up in
this location.

The amenity space currently enjoyed by the residents would remain unaffected by the proposed
development.

The agent has confirmed that the boats will be attached to the services using standard marine
attachments for charging and discharging fresh and foul water together with an electrical shore
attachment. All these attachments are standard marine type which can be readily disconnected
and reconnected by quick release couplings which is in line with the majority of bank side and
marine facilities. The pipes and cables are fully flexible umbilical cord style connections which
accommodate the rise and fall of water levels. All aspects relating to the upgrading of the
services to the moorings have been dealt with in conjunction with specialist Marine Consultants (
C P Heath Marine).

The purpose designed grey water and black water system will ensure that there is no discharge
of grey water into the River Thames. C P Heath Marine has confirmed that the Environment
Agency are encouraging marinas/moorings to upgrade to purpose designed piped systems and
chemical disposal points will eventually be phased out as part of the upgrading process.

Any development within 8m of the River Thames requires a ‘Flood Risk Activity Permit’ to be
obtained from the Environment Agency. The EA has confirmed that there is already an
Environmental Permit in place in relation to the proposed works and a permit variation will be
required. An Informative can be added accordingly.

The legality of the ‘floating homes’ at this site is currently being investigated separately by the
Enforcement Team.

A Factual Report on the Ground Investigation (dated May 2017) has been submitted with the
application. Solil instability was recorded within four of the five boreholes during drilling to a depth
of 3m. The report reads paragraph 4.2 ‘Where stable excavations are required, excavations
should either be suitably supported or side slopes should be battered back to a safe angle of
repose. Particular attention must be paid to ensuring the stability of nearby structures, services
and neighbouring sites.” It is not considered that the digging of the services trenches to a depth
of 700mm would pose any safety risk to the nearby Park Homes.

21



9.29

9.30

9.31

9.32

9.33

10.

10.1

11.

111

12.

13.

Revised drawings and further information have been obtained to provide accurate and up-to-date
detalils.

The angled galvanised posts along the rivers’ edge are to be removed as part of the upgrading
work on the camp-shedding. In the event of an extreme flood event being forecast temporary
vertical posts would be located within the camp-shedding at this time. The Marine Architect and
Marine Engineers ( C P Heath Marine) has confirmed that there is no reason for the angled posts
to be located permanently and their removal would provide a visual improvement.

Any infringement of the Park license would be a legal/civil matter and is not a material planning
consideration.

Whilst the site falls within Bray Parish it lies within Clewer North Ward and therefore the
application falls to be considered by the Windsor Urban Panel.

There are no highway/parking issues raised by this proposal.
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

The development is not CIL liable.

CONCLUSION

Whilst it is acknowledged that there has been a large amount of public concern raised in
connection with the proposed development and it is seen by many as a precursor for permanent
house boats to be moored up along this stretch of the riverbank, the mooring of boats along this
stretch of river is already controlled by a previous planning permission and the application must
be considered on its merits. It is considered that the proposed development constitutes
appropriate development in the Green Belt and would have no greater impact on the openness of
the Green Belt. The previous Inspector’'s concerns have been satisfactorily addressed by the
deletion of the Marine Service Bollards and mooring bollards. The proposal would not increase
flood risk and there would be some benefit to the visual appearance of the site itself. It is
considered that the proposed development accords with the guidance set out in the NPPF and
saved local plan policies GB1, GB2, DG1, N2,N6 and F1 and emerging policies SP1, SP2, SP3,
SP5,NR1 and NR2.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

Appendix A - Site location plan

Appendix B — Proposed layout drawings.

Appendix C — Elevations of proposed bin stores and underground pumps
Appendix D — Elevation of Service box and water stand pipe.

CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

The existing electric hook-up and mooring bollards shall be removed within 1 month of the
development hereby permitted being completed.

Reason: The development is within the Green Belt, and the proposed development is granted on
the basis that the existing development to be replaced is removed. Relevant Local Plan Policies
GB1 & GB2.

Details of a scheme for the insulation of the plant to be installed in the proposed pumping stations
hereby approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
prior to their installation and the scheme as approved shall be fully implemented and maintained

22



in accordance with the approved details. It is recommended that the scheme is in accordance
with British Standard (BS) 4142:20142 'Methods for rating and assessment industrial and
commercial sound.’

Reason: To protect the residential amenities of the area. Relevant Local Plan Policy NAP3.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation
measures detailed in the revised Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) dated October 2018.

1. The bin stores shall be robustly fixed to the ground and designed to ensure they do not
wash away during a flood event.

2. The electrical service boxes shall be set no lower than 710mm above the current ground
level.

Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding and to the accord with paragraphs 160 & 163 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Prior to any equipment, machinery or materials being brought onto the site, details of the
methodology for the installation of the underground utility apparatus, including any necessary tree
protection is to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved tree protection measures shall be implemented in full prior to any equipment,
machinery or materials being brought onto the site, and thereafter maintained until the completion
of all work to install the utilities.

Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and surrounding
area. Relevant local plan policies DG1 and N6.

The erection of fencing for the protection of any retained tree and any other protection specified
shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved plans and particulars before any
equipment, machinery or materials are brought on to the site, and thereafter maintained until the
completion of all construction work and all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have
been permanently removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in
accordance with this condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor
shall any excavation be made, without the written consent fo the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and surrounding
area. Relevant local plan policies DG1 and N6.

No tree or hedgerow shown to be retained in the approved plans shall be cut down, uprooted or
destroyed, nor shall any tree work be undertaken other than in accordance with the approved
plans and particulars and without the written approval of the Local Planning Authority, until five
years from the date of occupation of the building for its permitted use. Any tree work approved
shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard 3998 Tree work. If any retained tree is
removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, another tree shall be planted in the immediate vicinity
and that tree shall be of the size and species, and shall be planted at such time, as specified by
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1,
N6.

All areas of land currently grassed where the new underground services are to be laid shall be
returned to grass following the installation of the underground services to the satisfaction of the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1,
N6.

No development shall take place (including ground works and vegetation clearance) until a
construction environmental management plan (CEMP: Biodiversity) has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP (Biodiversity) shall include the
following. a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities .b) Identification of
"biodiversity protection zones". c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive
working practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of
method statements).d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity
features. e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present on site
to oversee works. f) Responsible persons and lines of communication. g) Use of protective
fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs. The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and

23



10

11

implemented throughout the construction period strictly in accordance with the approved details,
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that wildlife is not harmed as a result of this development. Relevant Policies -
Local Plan N2.

No development hereby permitted shall commence until details of biodiversity enhancements, to
include bird and bat boxes around the site and native and wildlife friendly landscaping, has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the council.

Reason: To incorporate biodiversity in and around the development in accordance with
paragraph 175 of the NPPF.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

Informatives

1

An Environmental Permit reference number EPR/CB31190QX is in place as required by the
Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) (Amendment) (No.2) Regulations 2016 for any
proposed works or structures, in, under, over or within 8 metres of the top of the bank of
designated 'main rivers'. A permit variation will be required for the proposed changes and the
applicant is advised to contact WestThamesConsents@environment-agency.gov.uk for more
information and guidance.

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Berkshire Act 1986, Part Il, Clause 9, which
enables the Highway Authority to recover the costs of repairing damage to the footway or grass
verge arising during building operations.

The attention of the applicant is drawn to Section 59 of the Highways Act 1980 which enables
the Highway Authority to recover expenses due to extraordinary traffic.

No builders materials, plant or vehicles related to the implementation of the development should
be parked/stored on the public highway so as to cause an obstruction at any time.

24



APPENDIX A - SITE LOCATION PLAN

|
16895 i Y 650 s, R 5y Ay e |

403200
193300
93500
ao33as Ll i

453145

25

-



d  OLE-EOLE

f

I E . g
|pued uogrssda uopms dusrd
DNINNY I 0L 1ee) Buly Dupcoyy Eupesuas ainsojaus eysap Supsps

—_—
SN 0L AT b B B o W

A|deirs
- g e eus| § AL
e sogospoagpmesteid [T 0| o o ofaeo ey pmosa o oG
R . e wg HEIEE L B BICERINED (B
- 12 tiugd EUPCOR) "0 55 50) £9I0-90 Susyi[Ecd @ o A - AI3ENS [BaNIIAR pasadald
£40 | 133HS - SIANTS GFSO0Hd 5% - Buy Bupoay pescaig wany sayQ) pedoEap o Ajddns pacdes
— T |Bra| Jaresm xouddy | FLEET) 0 JRLI00 ) = A SR SR pasodoly

vjews Ao pagrisy| @ us|D g pasmymund ag
soMOCH D] .
0L ERI|AUTE 40 IMCYHEAN TIFOA0N a0 = s 1| Saqu) sady &g pEaRida S 104 U wapoe o0 il SRR

e a0 o syun slRIcs [mEw SupspE o PRS00 AR asLe (Ao ou e

A0 A

it A P sapuns} B aecie) B paypdns
u ‘e B|ISEY JAqLI|) MEH |nbeLiEy) A9 papdng 0] ) SRR UDfRE 100 L] SRS SFLON
S T i e L
SRS Li2RCSL|
0471 NOHD KRN . @an uljou SSRURIP JBIEM |ND) PESCT0l _M_ BN0L AR SOjARS pesndad
— usum = A i sBui S 10N
T W ‘ﬁ Bup smawep .
5 ) WLIOZ L DUE B8 pos[uss R DZN@MI_
sy RS ol § Wy &
2LEIEE U padoasepa Bupg sse -
IR Auj BuuELoD ASnopasid R Ay . ‘B Lo peaifie
U SEf|GrE PACCED oY PAUDURY 69 09 o4 uspeg| = uny sBeula B
o8 A|ddns sEm puE [EXgoele pesodoug Uz | B9 08 JguUELD uojiaadsy|
. wa o dwnd o) efeyrip ro 4 -
— l/ _\%
¢ (
o ~ a/

.y 1 —e TS
- J 2 _ , = _ (). v..u1 h
0 e

U1l : . : —

/
‘?.

3 - I 5 g == I3 A 2
fm___n | _,ﬂu__.ss,n i e — i B L Fl1
! = - T 8 1t ! |n_un._:_.._.....;6 .“d[l\\uk
[.I[.II.I.Irffrfrr.rrrr.rrr..Jf
e _
iﬂ%ﬂ:ﬁﬁ%ﬂ.ﬁ € 40 | 133HS - N¥'1d S3DIAH3S d3S0d0™d - SONIHOOW DNILSIX3 OL SIDINYETS 40 ONIAVHOdN dISOd0Hd
i MAHVd JAISHIAId SMOTIIM

APPENDIX B — PROPOSED LAYOUT DRAWINGS

26




N LIEE0LE

_r e
DNINKY

=

_—

A1 S - o == i

Pty e

wE LN LH0¢ T

et = =

0aEl
£ 40 ¥ L33HE » SANAUIE I3T0d O
e

BEN[IOON SH|El
L EIIKNTG 40 TMOEHDAN TTFO400
Lt

45 75 HOROMA TYOH YTHAIT
HHYd 30|SHINHE SMOTIM
—_— e,

LR

0 D AR 1 i AT A S
i R 0 4 A k. B B8 i LA B

o S
Db JIE3B0 Bl Bupicapy

ESsssatssssans tusi]

GU|ppays
dwen [aoye Gupsxs

[ | Jarness souddy

Blaseg Jagqui) wahy

@S0 U] jou

gt 1)) A |4 sl 1E1ON
BGup ssawep

LIUNE L PUE 848 pes|UBAED

Bujddea sagupy mapy

fund LoRIado Loysys dund
BujupmuE RanEopLS [EpERf BUsps

*Apdns L) § AL
g Aedns ajges aucoep pasodosd o) ang

=N

ADE BOjAS oSO E I
sfqe(fee usym Bip sxpeques [eajoe)s I
[~ ]

]
_..n..xais-‘ésﬂg.ﬁ:f @
* By B ey e Rady Sofl) PACaNsER U Aocns paddRa

ERnuLa @)139U00D O = AING S SURL PRS0

) iy - g | B |asale pesod

AR BRI ea)a A paseuand ag

om0 48 RG] xRSy A5 DacRa *5l 43 WBH LCRAIEH B84 G} 43J54 AERANY
i o sun afieams (s BupspEeg fong E- | |Rsnd £|Rayanid sy (Rapnuyoe)
L) Gu o pedu)| B pajons

girksusey A s

l‘ 9 0y SERUR LOfjIaioNd 100U U] BIYASE IELON
0 o3 wa Ry Suplund pasadag 'I' SRAE UEfiEa a0 I‘._
e s L] ﬁ
ABELIRID SR |10y DRROIDL BIRCY YBURN BajuBE paeadiig

el EE N

i b N
e = Sl Lt e

N A L EEAR ..“”..nl..__..u.ll..%r Eﬁl.tim
T v A

IR R Y

2y

—=]

[
de) so1EM
+G0 dsS

i
de) Jejem

dej 1o1BM +$0dS

+.08S

|
dej Jejem
+204dS

dej siem + |0
xog aojnes

€ 40 ¢ 133HS

- S3DINHIS dISOdOHd - SONIHOOW ONILSIX3 OL STDNAHIS 40 ONIAVHOdN d3S0d0dd

AAVd JAISYIARI SMOTTIM

27



N ZIE-E0LE
— e

DHINNY - L e ora oo
0 DL (B Bul Bupoon
e i
wE ELEn 21 o
— ~— ) Jona) sajew xouddy
i
€40 £ LTEHE » S35 AU3E 0FL0I0H
b
soMOCH DKl BJSE) Janu) maEn
ol FRAHTR 40 IMCYHIAN TIE0ACH
e
WS 719 WOSOMM TYOE OYaHAICI 850 ul pou
WY I0ISEIAE SMOTIIM sy el Senim sy 3 on
et Els JARILER
041 4n0HE RAITTEN WLZ | puE B8 pasuENED

wep:

Joured ucfiesadt uaje dund
Bulu e uss sunsapue (Eajoels Gulsps !

*AAng jauE] 3 AL
40 SRS st E ) AEdng apgRs wes-f pasadoud o) fang H

Bulppays

] : o,
. I i ) sy » Apdns [Ezjsmeg pescdaig I
- B Supsoiy posadold ¥ mw g o) pedajasen ul fddres paddes .
F n 0} jauucs of = Ajddns svmm sujew pesodaig l

CEequCa
c!kuxiiwra_ufuuﬂzuanh éwefment -
T} WS UG R xncy A past| "5yt 29 ueld uojajos nex) of sy aseo|
e 0 s afesas | s Bufisfes ons In’- “ofqlssod Ajeapoesd !u__i..s...n_______ﬂuﬂ
P2

by Ay pof|ddrs 94 o s efizued jon U] saofes 10N
B o3 wajes Sujdwne pasadis mU sea uchann oy I‘.'_
saciEy uopsatsy| .
‘abeujein sqes, no; pasodiug E AING LIUAR BPUAE pARHCIG

‘ON3DIT

Budden saqup sy

Y
s 8w

e
B AR . 0 g R L
" St o Ao R 14 ol AR B

dey ._wum__s
+¢l 89S

€40 € L33HS

SUERRNIED AR - S30IAN3S AISOdOHd - SONIHOOW ONILSIXI OL SIOINGETS 40 ONIAYHOdN A3S0Od0ONd

NAVd AISHYIARY SMOTTIM

28



APPENDIX C — ELEVATIONS OF PROPOSED TIMBER BIN STORES

WILLOWS RIVERSIDE PARK

PROFPOSED UPGRADING OF SERVICES TO EXISTING MOORINGS - PROPOSED TIMBER BIN ENCLOSURE

— |

REAR ELEVATION 1:20

o T —

= |
Pressure treated Hmber —| A "
weatherboarding. 1 ™. =
FInlsh: Matural - Jac]

I |

51D E_EL EVATION 1:20

e

SIDE ELEVATION 1:20

Haulfryn

SAULPRYH SCUP LT

WILLOWS RIVERSIDE PARK
SATEANEAT A3, RSO BLE TR

| PROPOSED UPGRADING OF
SERVIZES TO EXIETIG MODRINGS

PROPOSED TIBER BN ENCLOSURE
1=

: =Sesetesss : == S
3703-270 B
WILLOWS RIVERSIDE PARK =
PROPQOSED UPGRADING OF SERVICES TO EXISTING MOORINGS -
SERVICE BOX WITHIN TIMBER BIN ENCLOSURE
,—f::’::::::::::;_::::; ’::;1::':5:;::— — ! ’!’¢"f
i W | I ' 5
B [
{ Service
! T —% box
} 1 5
o o &
U Tt Haulfryn
L
| | | !
H—— Galvanised steel frame i i g L e
TT TT
i i~ 2 M
e ———

REAR ELEVATION 1:10

SIDE ELEVATION 1:10

Fropased Upgrading of Services
1o Exlsfing Mocrlngs

: T 3703-2m1

| " |
1 530 1
i = | PLAN 1:20
I r___
: ( i [ \ 1 Service
=) I | ‘ | } box
o | |
i I I
[ -
i : Z=
T
/”\
VAN i ; ! i
- . Soale 1770 = B




EXISTING METAL SHEDS
' WILLOWS RIVERSIDE PARK

PROPOSED UPGRADING OF SERVICES TO EXISTING MOORINGS - EXISTING METAL STORAGE SHED

1130

440

REAR ELEVATION 1:20

SIDE ELEVATION 1:20

1850
|

FRONT ELEVATION 1:20

Iﬂ!
i

T—B?D—T

SIDE ELEVATION 1:20

L3

SAULPRYN SREUF AT,

L
WILLOWS RIVERSIDE PARK
WAL APEA B3, WSSO, BL4STE

| PACFOSER UPGRADING OF
SERVIZES T EXRTING MOCRIN O3
———

ERIETING METAL BTORAGE 88D

e = i
= PLANKING .
H
3703-275 A

30




PUMPING STATION DETAIL

DRG.No | HAD104% |

UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED, MACHINED UNLIMITED TOLERANCES TO BE + 0.10° OR 0.25mm | I55. | DATE |

CHANGES

> wc o
-

0 S SATE VALVE

AN B TYPE MM EETURN VALVE

KIDSK

M0 10W DT FTR PONER SUPPLY CABLE

(s vy oo ey et
Erry SRR
it = e B
s Y Ry
R IIILE DRAWN Pa seaLe 120 @ A3
Harroqlnp ADVANTACDE PPSI0-16 RSO0V TWIN -
Pump Systems DRGNS HADLO4S
120 LONDESEOROUGH STREET, HULL, HUZ 1DR Evpe W et Sd

31




APPENDIX D — ELEVATIONS OF SERVICE BOX AND WATER STAND

PIPE

WILLOWS RIVERSIDE PARK

PROPOSED UPGRADING OF SERVICES TO EXISTING MOCRINGS -
SERVICE BOX AND WATER STAND PIPE

" 316 "

w
3
Service
3y — box
3
L =)
ha
Service box and Water Stand Plpe Water Stand Plpe
Front Elevatlon Slde Elevatlon
[ o1 0.2 03 O 0.8 1
Scale 1110 = 100mm=1m Metres

r‘IBU "

Service box
Slde Elevation

&
Haulfryn

ge foad, Hastings, East Susex Tha4 |01
morcreech A b b A

Hauliyn Group Lid.

W
Willows Rivarsida Pork
Molderracs Rood, Wi, 514 5T

Froposad Upgrading ef Sercas
1o Exkling Moarings

T
Servlce Box and Wole Siand Hpe

s
;| Q@AY

=
L)

Planning

" 3703-273

32




WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

7 November 2018 ltem: 2

Application 18/02346/FULL

No.:

Location: 75 - 75A Victoria Street Windsor

Proposal: Change of use of part ground floor and basement from Al(retail) to Bla (offices) and
part residential (1no.studio flat). Demolition of existing garages, alterations and
extensions including a second floor extension and rear extensions to create 2no. 1 bed
flats, 1no.1 bed dwelling and cycle/bin store.

Applicant: Mr Gorslar

Agent: Mr Stuart Mackay

Parish/Ward:  Windsor Unparished/Castle Without Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Briony Franklin on 01628 796007 or at
briony.franklin@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

11

1.2

3.1

SUMMARY

The proposal comprises a change of use of the ground floor of the premises from Class Al
(retail) to Class Bla (office) and Class C3 (residential) to create a studio flat. In addition it is
proposed to provide a second floor extension above the existing premises to create a 1 bed flat
and demolish existing garages and erect a two storey rear extension to create a 1 bed dwelling.
A cycle and bin store are to be provided to serve the development. Including the retention of the
first floor 1 bed unit a total of 4.no 1 bed residential units will be provided in this town centre
location.

The proposed change of use of the ground floor is considered to be acceptable in this location.
The proposed extensions would not harm the significance of the Conservation Area and would be
in keeping with the site itself and the locality in general. It is considered that the proposal would
have no adverse impact on the living conditions of the neighbouring properties and the standard
of amenity for future occupiers is considered to be adequate in this town centre location. It is
considered that a parking free development can be accepted in the highly sustainable location
and no highway safety aspects are raised by the proposal.

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in
Section 13 of this report.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

e The Council’'s Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the
Panel.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site currently comprises a two storey building with a small basement which fronts
onto Victoria Street and lies within Windsor Town Centre. The ground floor is currently used as
an office and the first floor comprises a residential flat which is accessed separately at the rear.
There is a shared vehicular access at the rear of the site via Russell Street and the property
currently has 3 car parking spaces provided within an open fronted, single storey garage
building. The site lies adjacent to a large 2/3 storey office building at number 71/73 Victoria
Street and a 2 storey office at number 77 Victoria Street. Residential properties lie to the south of
the site and include flats in Ralston Court and terraced dwellings in Russell Street. Newly built
flats at number 79 Victoria Street lie to the west of the site.

33



4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

KEY CONSTRAINTS

The front of the site lies within the Windsor Town Centre Conservation Area. The site does not lie
within a designated shopping frontage.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The proposal comprises the change of use of the ground floor and basement from Class Al
(retail) to Class Bla (office) and Class C3 (residential). The office would be accessed from the
front of the building and the studio flat would be accessed from the rear courtyard. It is also
proposed to demolish 3 garages at the rear and alter/extend the building to include a second floor
extension above the existing premises and ground and first floor rear extensions (flat roof) to
provide 2no 1 bed flats accessed via an external staircase and a 2 storey 1 bed unit. These
would all be accessed from the rear courtyard and the first and second floor flats would have
small south facing deck/terraces. The 2 storey dwelling would have a Juliette balcony and
French doors serving a bedroom. The building would be rendered to match the existing and a
slate roof is proposed. A shared pedestrian/ vehicular access is to be retained at the rear via an
archway from Russell Street.

During the course of the application concern was raised that the proposed car parking layout
would be impractical. It was considered that a larger bin store and cycle store to serve the
development would provide a better layout solution for the site.

There is no recent planning history relating to this site however planning permission for a similar
residential development was granted at number 79 Victoria Street under application number
14/03204/FULL and is now complete.

DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Adopted Royal Borough Local Plan (2003)

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Issue Adopted Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance DG1, H10,H11
of area
Accep_table impact when viewed from nearby H11
occupiers
Parking and Highway issues P4 & T5
Preserves or enhances Conservation Area CA2
Housing in Windsor Town Centre WTC3
Location of economic development El1 & E6
Change of use of shops S8

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices
MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2018)
Section 4- Decision—making

Section 9- Promoting Sustainable Transport

Section 12- Achieving well-designed places

Section 16- Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

34


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

7.1

7.2

7.3

Issue Local Plan Policy
greesa:gn in keeping with character and appearance of SP2. SP3
Economic Development ED1 & ED3
Shops outside defined centres TR7
Historic Environment HE1
Sustainable Transport IF2

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents have now been
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination. The Submission Version of the Borough
Local Plan does not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough. However, by
publishing and submitting the Borough Local Plan for independent examination the Council has
formally confirmed its intention to adopt the submission version. As the Council considers the
emerging Borough Local Plan to be sound and legally compliant, officers and Councillors should
accord relevant policies and allocations significant weight in the determination of applications
taking account of the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies.
Therefore, the weight afforded to each policy at this stage will differ depending on the level and
type of representation to that policy. This is addressed in more detail in the assessment below.

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

e Conservation Area Appraisal
e RBWM Townscape Assessment
¢ RBWM Parking Strategy

More information on these documents can be found at;
https://mwww3.rbwm.qgov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni

ng

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

No comments have been received from the 18 occupiers notified directly of the application.
The planning officer posted notices advertising the application at the site on 22" August 2018
(Victoria Street and Russell Street) and the application was advertised in the Maidenhead &

Windsor Advertiser on 23 August 2018.

Statutory consultees

Where in the

Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Highways No objection subject to conditions. Paragraph 9.11

35


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning

9.1

9.2

9.3

Consultees

Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Thames Advice is provided in respect to sewerage and water. A suitable
Water informative will
be added.
Conservation | No objection. The proposal will not harm the significance of | Paragraph 9.5
Officer the Conservation Area. Suggested conditions relating to
window detailing and materials.
Environmental | No objection subject to conditions. Paragraph 9.13
Protection

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:
i Proposed Change of Use

It is proposed to change the use of the ground floor and basement from Class Al (retail) to part
Class Bla (business) and part Class C3 (residential). It is understood that the lawful use of the
ground floor is as retail although it has not been in retail use for 2 years and it is has been
occupied as an office for the past year. The premises do not lie within a primary or secondary
shopping frontage and the loss of a retail unit in this location would have no impact on the vitality
or viability of the shopping area. In addition it is not considered that a retail unit in this location
would have fulfilled a function that benefits the local community. The use of part of the ground
floor as an office is considered to be a suitable use in this location. Emerging policy ED1
encourages a range of different types and sizes of employment premises and emerging policy
ED3 seeks to ensure that a suitable range of floor space is provided to meet the needs of
businesses and this includes lower cost premises suitable for small and start-up businesses. The
part change of use to residential would also accord with policy WTC3 which encourages housing
in Windsor Town Centre in order to maintain the vitality of the town centre. As such no objection
is raised to the change of use of the ground floor from retail to part business, part residential use
in this location.

ii Impact on the character and appearance of the Windsor Town Centre Conservation Area,
the site itself and the locality in general.

Local Plan Policy DG1 and emerging policy SP3 set out the design guidance for new
development. Local Plan Policy H10 refers specifically to new residential development schemes,
requiring them to display high standards of design and landscaping in order to create attractive,
safe and diverse residential areas. Policy H11 states that in established residential areas
planning permission will not be granted for schemes which introduce a scale or density which
would be incompatible with or cause damage to the character and amenity of the area. Emerging
policy HO5 requires all new housing to be developed at a density that is consistent with achieving
good design and the density of development will be informed by amongst other things the need to
ensure satisfactory residential amenity for both the proposed accommodation and nearby
residential properties. The NPPF (revised July 2018) Section 12 ‘Achieving well-designed places’
states that ‘the creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning
and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable
development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make development
acceptable to communities.” Paragraph 127 states that planning policies and decisions should
ensure that developments, amongst other things, function well and add to the overall quality of
the area, not just for the short term but over the lifetime of the development; are visually attractive
as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping; are
sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built environment and
landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such

36



9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

as increased densities) and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which
promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.

There are a mix of building types, heights and designs fronting Victoria Street. It is proposed to
add a second floor above the existing two storey flat roof building and the height would match the
height of the extension recently permitted and constructed at number 79 Victoria Street. It is
considered that the proposal would appear in keeping with the scale and proportions of the
surrounding buildings and it would have no adverse impact on the character and appearance of
the street scene in general.

The building which fronts onto Victoria Street lies within the Conservation Area and Local Plan
Policy CA2 requires that development should enhance or preserve the character or appearance
of the Conservation Area and should be of a high design standard which is sympathetic in terms
of siting, proportion, scale, form, height, materials and detailing to adjacent buildings and the
character of the area in general. It is not considered that the proposed development will harm the
significance of the Conservation Area subject to the imposition of suitable conditions relating to
window detailing and materials.

The rear of the site lies outside the Conservation Area and is set back behind the existing
buildings fronting Russell Street including Ralston Court, a flatted development. The site is not
readily visible from the public domain except from neighbouring properties. The
extension/building at the rear would be 5.5m in height and has been designed with a flat roof and
would have quite a contemporary appearance. The building would have smooth render walls and
include glass balconies. It is considered that the height, scale, density, spacing and design of the
proposed development would be appropriate for this town centre location and would be similar in
design to the permitted scheme at number 79 Victoria Street. As such it is considered that the
proposal would be in keeping with the site itself and the locality in general and would not detract
from the character and appearance of the locality in general and would accord with saved policies
DG1, H10, H11 & WTC3 and emerging policies SP2 & SP3.

iii Impact of the proposal on the living conditions of the neighbouring properties

It is important to assess the impact of any proposal on the living conditions of the neighbouring
properties in terms of light, outlook and privacy.

There is already a degree of mutual overlooking within the rear courtyard from the existing
buildings. The first floor full length windows and Juliette balcony in the western elevation of the
proposed 2 storey building would serve a bedroom and would be sited approximately 9.5m from
the windows in the eastern elevation of the newly completed apartments at number 79 Victoria
Street and approximately 9m from the small amenity space at the rear of Ralston Court. In
addition there is a small terrace/deck area proposed to the rear of the first and second floor flats
however only restricted views would be available from these areas. Whilst there is likely to be a
degree of overlooking and loss of privacy from the proposed development it is not considered that
the proposal would introduce an unacceptable level of overlooking and loss of privacy to the
surrounding neighbouring properties in this town centre location where some degree of mutual
overlooking and loss of privacy is to be expected.

The site backs onto number 5 Ralston Court which has an adjoining first floor roof terrace and the
rear of dwellings at numbers 14 & 16 Russell Street. The proposed two storey dwelling would
have a height of approximately 5.5m and would be sited approximately 4.3m from the rear
boundary of these properties. It is considered that sufficient spacing would be maintained and
that the proposal would not result in an unacceptable loss of light and outlook to the rear of these
adjoining properties in this town centre context.

It is considered that the proposal would have no adverse impact on the living conditions of the
neighbouring properties in terms of light, outlook and privacy and the standard of amenity for the
future occupiers is considered to be satisfactory in this town centre location. The proposal
accords with saved policy H11 and emerging policy SP3.

37



9.11

9.12

9.13

10.

10.1

11.

111

12.

iv Highways/Parking

The application site is located within Windsor town centre and is only 480m from the Windsor &
Eton Central train station. The site is deemed to be in a sustainable/accessible location. The
Local Authority’s current Parking Strategy requires that 0.5 spaces are provided for a 1 bed unit
and 1 space is provided per 100sg.m of B1 office space in this location. The application proposes
to create an office and 4 x 1 bed units and the site would therefore attract a demand for 2 car
parking spaces. The original layout showed 1 existing car parking space to be retained and one
space to be provided to accommodate a second car parking space. There was however concern
that the layout would be impractical and that insufficient space was being provided for refuse/bin
storage and that access to the cycle store would be restricted. It is not considered that an
objection could be raised to a car free development in this location. Parking restrictions and
residents permits operate in the surrounding area which would prevent indiscriminate parking.
The scheme has therefore been amended to delete the parking spaces and provide a larger cycle
store and refuse/bin store to serve the development. The cycle stands have been revised to meet
the design standards and the sizes/number of the bins have been revised to meet the waste
guidance and provide refuse storage for the commercial and residential use.

No objection is raised to the proposal on parking or highway safety grounds subject to
appropriate conditions and informatives being imposed and the proposal would accord with saved
policy T5 and emerging policy IF2.

v Other Material Considerations

The Environmental Protection team has suggested conditions requiring an Environmental
Construction Management Plan and restrictions on collection and delivery times during the
construction phase. Given however the size of the development it is considered that these
aspects can be reasonable dealt with by an Informative in this case.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

The proposal is CIL liable and a CIL Additional Information Requirement Form has been
submitted with the application which calculates the net additional gross internal floor space to be
69 sq.m. CIL is calculated based on the net additional increase in floor space of a development
multiplied by the charging rate which is £240 in this case. CIL is based on measurements of the
gross internal area (GIA) of a building. CIL will be charged on additional floor space i.e. proposed
new floor space minus existing floor space. Existing buildings must have been in lawful use for a
continuous period of at least six months within the period of three years ending on the day
planning permission first permits the development. In this case it has been calculated that there
would be a reduction in GIA floor space at ground floor level of 13.8 sg. The additional GIA floor
space at first and second floor would amount to 86 sq.m. The net additional gross internal floor
space has been calculated at 72 sq.m. Therefore the amount payable would be £17,280.

CONCLUSION

Significant weight is to be afforded to the relevant Borough Local Plan Submission Version
policies in this case. The above application is considered to comply with the relevant policies
listed above within the Development Plan and the Borough Local Plan Submission Version and it
is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to the conditions set out below.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout
e Appendix B — plan and elevation drawings
e Appendix C - Cross sections

38



13.

CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

Prior to the insertion of the second floor windows in the front elevation of the building, further
details including vertical and horizontal sections of the existing first floor windows and proposed
second floor windows at a scale of 1:10 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with these
approved details.

Reason: To ensure the existing and proposed windows are consistently detailed and preserve
the Conservation Area. Relevant Policy - Local Plan CAZ2.

Prior to the application of any render, a sample panel of the proposed render shall be prepared
on site and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the render matches the existing render on the building in order to
preserve the character of the Conservation Area. Relevant Policy - Local Plan CA2.

Prior to the tiling of the roof, a sample of slate shall be provided on site and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordace with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the proposal preserves the character of the Conservation Area.
Relevant Policy - Local Plan CA2.

The development shall not be occupied until the covered and secure cycle parking has been
provided in accordance with the approved drawings and the cycle store shall be kept available for
the parking of cycles in association with the development at all times.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate cycle parking facilities in
order to encourage the use of alternative modes of transport. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T7 &,
DG1

The development shall not be occupied until the refuse bin storage area and recycling facilities
have been provided in accordance with the approved drawings. These facilities shall be kept
available for use in association with the development at all times.

Reason: Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate facilities that allow
it to be serviced in a manner which would not adversely affect the free flow of traffic and highway
safety and to ensure the sustainability of the development. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T5 &
DG1

Prior to the commencement of any works of demolition or construction a management plan
showing how demolition and construction traffic, (including cranes), materials storage, facilities
for operatives and vehicle parking and manoeuvring will be accommodated during the works
period shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan
shall be implemented as approved and maintained for the duration of the works or as may be
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policy - Local
Plan T5.

Informatives

1

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Berkshire Act 1986, Part I, Clause 9, which

39



enables the Highway Authority to recover the costs of repairing damage to the footway or grass
verge arising during building operations.

The attention of the applicant is drawn to Section 59 of the Highways Act 1980 which enables
the Highway Authority to recover expenses due to extraordinary traffic.

No builders materials, plant or vehicles related to the implementation of the development should
be parked/stored on the public highway so as to cause an obstruction at any time.

The applicant is advised to adhere to the contents of the letter provided by Thames Water dated
22nd August 2018.

Due to the close proximity of the site to existing residential properties, the applicant's attention is
drawn to the Considerate Constructors Scheme initiative. This initiative encourages contractors
and construction companies to adopt a considerate and respectful approach to construction
works, so that neighbours are not unduly affected by noise, smells, operational hours, vehicle
parking at the site or making deliveries, and general disruption caused by the works. By signing
up to the scheme, contractors and construction companies commit to being considerate and
good neighbours, as well as being clean, respectful, safe, environmentally conscious,
responsible and accountable. The Council highly recommends the Considerate Constructors
Scheme as a way of avoiding problems and complaints from local residents and further
information on how to participate can be found at www.ccscheme.org.uk

40



Appendix A

Site Location Plan

i
!
i
i
!
I

41



Site Layout SSC

| g |
2 A1
® e ==
[ o o e f o | PN \
S v R = )
I I I I f P M .-.urIv. RN
= s W i i \
- e
g T [y ditin——
-~ T, _“ P 1
i ~ I: *. .
= T H o -
o s
-
— T
%
e Bt e Tt
Tha Fild
._T Boale ot 1280
- p——
r o 2 L3 10w
T
o2 Lo = = Lm | — ] et I ) - Vmniy sl
== = =) oo P
== 3 o wor |21 [w
[ = aF
== - = pasE o
— == =

42



Site Layout ESAC

43



Appendix B

SSC Plans and Elevations

_W_.__ﬁ 11

[ Eimsrg
e

s @21 750
s
e == == = — Ty T
==t e Papome e G P
== wee [200 o
== == = e
PRmmmmsta | eezam Bl B0 b

Errs

44



45



J
O,

Tha Fiald

Bl 180
[ - Sy - —
- oA L B 1
L i =% 0 f .
. Lol e y
T T T T
= ===y = Wi BN Colage W GyTd  Fa a1 Oy Hesta

Bt 0 -Preopome e oo P

e 2202 _m.

ﬁﬁﬂﬂz
i

B
=== o [STRIEH mewl | B0 W
Famrier w e

46



~
7

C

.,
Erigaie's i [ | ”p.
o =T - wd
‘.\w.. . .....w/ T x!v...L|.x Tha Flaid
N A N | -
" |4 ) 1
- . Uy M...,.%M_. _.M.:._._.. [ n.r.\. I [ . , } : . 6o & o
e LI S 2 £ === e T T nherar T woe ey A
== W G -PYoee Gem M J— _Nu..._u. _.M_
Pt = s s [ Bl | B0 M

47



Tha Fmid

el

T e T

48




mwhm St Bl 4 Sgerta Hal

kN & . T

| N o e
g LA

)
i

:

:

|
B
il
e

CIIT [T R P T =TTy

49




e s o - =
— _ | |y
L™ — T — —_—T
EEEEEE u NIIITTTRTTITT] ITTTTNTTTT] ITTTTETTTT] | m Mlﬂ g
| _ Szt Hal T mu anging
o OSSN ==

A A - ropen o B
'

HEg it

i
t
il

R m e S e e | Ra e e i i 8

50



 coamecarme X Fitwes and Aite M Squash and 0P ¥ Sparts Hat > < Rakets >

51

WL SE— MR- M Al —— e TR | i —— TR T o Gl ey TiCem  Drway heke P
- — T e G 8- Cot o v s _Nw-° _ E
gﬂh‘k.ﬂ‘ e zmm e 2 A

O - - = — o i o— L o b ]



1
e “
dt -
1
i
T 7
— L= l
5
.3 Lol \.\
=
]
k- A"
. s
b= i
= = oM | | — —
EE
Sl 130
" — T g o T T LD =
e e R T f— _ 2600

e
;
i

=T Prr——r—"
= = b T

ESAC Plans and elevations

52




T T

8




== N i

W
T, o S
(T e p—
P - L
T
=TT T T L= =T I T | N ST T CIEC I | WL — E @p CTECLE e Pl G Tammig Horim P
; =
— e = [R— _ _
202 F
=it Troas ek ne = e
i R

e e T T T T T

54



= I

N
T Bl a1 D
{ ——
L T ) o
T T
=TT T == == re: ST L D o I ) Tmay Herim b
= I = - o
e e we — wmor |2803  [F
s SEipn =]
- == . P —————
LS [y 350

55



56



0 6

QI

_B: |8
Jp—

57




Pt | Cramging!,

o LA Nk s RS |

58



59



This page is intentionally left blank



of Windsor &
Maidenhead

www.rbwm.gov.ulg:

Planning Appeals Received

29 September 2018 - 29 October 2018

WINDSOR URBAN

The appeals listed below have been received by the Council and will be considered by the Planning Inspectorate.
Should you wish to make additional/new comments in connection with an appeal you can do so on the Planning
Inspectorate website at https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ please use the Plns reference number. If you do
not have access to the Internet please write to the relevant address, shown below.

Enforcement appeals: The Planning Inspectorate, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol,

BS1 6PN

Other appeals: The Planning Inspectorate Temple Quay House, 2 The Square Bristol BS1 6PN

Ward:
Parish:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:
Location:
Appellant:

Windsor Unparished

18/60124/ENF Enforcement 17/50150/ENF Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/C/18/
Ref.: 3199099

24 October 2018 Comments Due: 5 December 2018

Enforcement Appeal Appeal Type: Written Representation

Appeal against the Enforcement Notice: Erection of a building without planning permission.
Mill Stream Motors Mill Lane Windsor SL4 5JH
Mr Colin Messer Mill Stream Motors Mill Lane Windsor SL4 5JH

61


https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/

www.rbwm.gov.uk

WINDSOR URBAN

Appeal Ref.:

Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:
Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

Royal Borough
of Windsor &
Maidenhead
Appeal Decision Report
28 September 2018 - 29 October 2018
18/60047/REF Planning Ref.: 17/03682/FULL Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/18/
3199115

Mr William Ball c/o Agent: Mr Kevin J. Turner 4 Little Oaks Close Shepperton Surrey TW17
0GA

Delegated Officer Recommendation:  Refuse
Construction of a detached single storey 2-bedroom dwelling

Land Between 3 And 4 And 5 Clewer Fields Windsor

Dismissed Decision Date: 4 October 2018

The appeal was dismissed on the grounds of: 1. Harm to character and appearance of the
area due to siting, height and design of dwelling - cramped and contrived appearance. 2.
Does not pass the sequential test and would not be safe from flooding and would increase
the number of people at risk of flooding contrary to policy F1.

Appeal Ref.:

Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

17/60116/ENF Enforcement APP/T0355/C/17/

Ref.: 3182835

Mr D Loveridge And T Giles Mssrs D Loveridge And T Giles c/o Agent: Dr Angus
Murdoch Murdoch Planning Limited P O Box 71 liminster Somerset TA19 OWF

Officer Recommendation:

17/50138/ENF PIns Ref.:

Appeal against the Enforcement Notice: Without Planning Permission the material change
of use of the land from its current mixed use to a mixed use as existing with the addition of
storage of cars, containers, scrap vehicles and vehicle parts; the importation of materials to
form a hardstanding in connection with the storage of cars the siting of a portacabin and
toilet block and the erection of palisade fencing.

Datchet Common Horton Road Datchet Slough

Withdrawn

Decision Date: 18 October 2018

62



Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:
Decision Type:

Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

18/60077/REF 17/00401/0UT Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/18/

3197255

Messrs Williamson And Bugden c/o Agent: Mr Gili-Ross Architects Corporation Ltd Flat 1
Thornhill House 14 Upton Road Watford WD18 0JP

Delegated

Planning Ref.:

Officer Recommendation: Refuse

Outline application for access, appearance, layout and scale be considered at this stage
(with landscaping to be reserved), for a 2.5 storey building comprising 8 flats (7 x 1 bed and
1 x 2 bed) with car parking and cycle storage.

Former 138 Datchet Cottage Horton Road Datchet Slough

Dismissed Decision Date: 2 October 2018

The Inspector commented that the net increase of 7 residential units would result in an
intensification of the former residential use. He also considered that the Sequential Test was
very limited in its extent and it has not been demonstrated that the development is
'necessary' in terms of paragraph 155 of the NPPF. As such, the development would conflict
with paragraph 155 and would be unacceptable on flood risk grounds. The Inspector
comments that the building with its considerable bulk and mass would be prominent from a
variety of public vantage points in the locality. The Inspector also comments that the
elevations are bland, uninspiring and relate poorly to adjacent building; and the side (east)
elevation in particular is bereft of articulation resulting in an unattractive building.
Furthermore, adding to the Inspector's concerns is the large proportion of the site take up by
hardstanding. He concludes that the development would harm the character and
appearance of the area contrary to policies DG1, H10, and H11 of the Local Plan. However,
the Inspector considered that the development would not unacceptably harm the living
conditions of neighbouring occupiers with regard to noise, disturbance or living conditions.
The Inspector was also satisfied that subject to recommended protection measures set out
in the appellant's Tree Report , the development would not jeopardise the health of trees.

Appeal Ref.:

Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:
Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

18/60078/REF 17/02911/FULL Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/18/

3196739

Mr David Ham Boundstone Developments Ltd c/o Agent: Mr Peter Smith PJSA Chartered
Surveyors The Old Place Lock Path Dorney Windsor SL4 6QQ

Committee

Planning Ref.

Officer Recommendation: Refuse

10 flats with associated parking following the demolition of the existing Public House
The Queen 282 Dedworth Road Windsor SL4 4JR

Allowed Decision Date: 28 September 2018

The Inspector considered that overall the development would be appropriate in terms of its
bulk, scale, design and layout, would not harm the character and appearance of the area and
would accord with Local Plan policies DG1, H10 and H10, which seek development which is
high quality and compatible with its surroundings. The amount of separation and orientation
would be sufficient to ensure that neighbouring occupiers (at No. 284) would not be
subjected to unreasonable levels of enclosure or overbearing elements in the rearward
views. Furthermore, the Inspector was satisfied that there would be not be any harmful
overlooking or loss of privacy to neighbours. The Inspector also commented that the
removal of a noise generating use such a pub is likely to have a significant beneficial effect
on the amenity of local residents.

63



Appeal Ref.:

Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

18/60088/REF Planning Ref.: 17/03439/FULL Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/18/
3199532

Hawtrey Developments Ltd c/o Agent: Mr S Saxena ADS Suite 462 5 Spur Road Isleworth
Middlesex TW7 5BD

Delegated Officer Recommendation:  Refuse

Erection of 3 x maisonettes with associated parking following the demolition of 4 x existing
garages.

Land To The Rear of Maynard Court Clarence Road Windsor
Dismissed Decision Date: 11 October 2018

The Inspector in the absence of an individual FRA was not satisfied that the development
would be safe for its lifetime nor that it would not increase the risk of flooding to neighbouring
properties and therefore concluded that the exceptions test had not been passed. It was also
noted that the proposal fails to comply with policy F1 of the Local Plan. The Inspector also
concluded that there is a significant likelihood that an inadequate standard of living space
would be provided (in the flat within the roof), which would be harmful to the living conditions
of future occupiers of the flat.

64



	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf
	Insert from: "APRIL 2017_Govt access and declarations of interest.pdf"
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf


	3 MINUTES
	4 PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)
	All_planning_applications

	5 ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

